ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 7, 2018
1:33 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Coghill, Chair
Senator Ma Costello
Senat or Pete Kelly

Senator Bill W el echowski
Senator dick Bishop

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 124

“"An Act relating to the duties of physicians and health care
practitioners when performng or inducing abortions; providing
that a child renoved from a pregnant wonman's wonb alive after an
abortion nmay be surrendered and found to be a child in need of
aid; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BILL NO. 109

"An Act relating to background investigation requirenents for
state enployees whose job duties require access to certain
federal tax information; relating to persons under contract with
the state wth access to certain federal tax information;
establishing state personnel procedures required for enployee
access to certain federal tax information; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 124

SHORT TITLE: ABORTI ON PROCEDURES; CHI LD SURRENDER
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) G ESSEL

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 7, 2018



01/ 16/ 18 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/8/18

01/ 16/ 18 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/16/ 18 (S HSS, JUD

02/ 19/ 18 (S HSS AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 19/ 18 (S) Moved SB 124 Qut of Committee
02/ 19/ 18 (S M NUTE( HSS)

02/ 21/ 18 (S HSS RPT 1DP 1DNP 3NR

02/ 21/ 18 (S) NR: WLSON, VON | VHOF, M CCl CHE
02/ 21/ 18 (S) DP: G ESSEL

02/ 21/ 18 (S DNP: BEG CH

02/ 21/ 18 (S FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD
03/ 07/ 18 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 109
SHORT TITLE: CRIM H ST CHECK: ST EMPLOYEES/ CONTRACTORS
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

04/ 07/ 17 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
04/ 07/ 17 (S) JUD, FIN
03/ 07/ 18 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 124.

KARI NORE, Staff

Senator Cathy G essel

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Delivered the sectional analysis for SB 124,
version U

GENEVI EVE WQJTUSI K, Legi sl ative Liaison

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Introduced SB 109 on Dbehalf of the
adm ni stration.

CAROL BEECHER, Director

Division of Child Support Services

Departnent of Revenue (DOR)

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 109.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 7, 2018



ERI C GAFFNEY, Records and Licensing Supervisor

Crim nal Records ldentification Bureau

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 109.

BRANDON SPANCS, Deputy Director

Tax Division

Departnent of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 109.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:33: 16 PM

CHAIR JOHN COGH LL called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:33 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Costello, Bishop, Kelly, Welechowski, and
Chair Coghill.

SB 124- ABORTI ON__PROCEDURES; CHI LD SURRENDER

1: 34: 21 PM
CHAI R COGHI LL announced the consi derati on of SB 124.

1:36: 04 PM

SENATOR CATHY d ESSEL, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau, Al aska,
sponsor of SB 124, said the purpose of this legislation is to
gi ve babies the opportunity to be born alive. The bill lays out
the foll owi ng guidelines:

When perform ng or inducing an abortion the physician
shal | use the nethod that provides the best
opportunity for the unborn child to survive.

A child born alive as a result of an abortion shall
receive the sane degree of professional skill, care
and diligence to preserve the life and health of the
child as a child born in the course of natural birth
at the sane fetal age.

A child born alive as a result of an abortion may be

surrendered to a physician or an enployee of the
hospital or facility where the abortion is perforned.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 7, 2018



A child born alive as a result of an abortion is
considered to be a child in need of aid if the parent
is unwilling or unable to care for the child.

This bill applies to all abortions perforned or

i nduced after the effective date. v This bill take
effect immediately.

This bill take effect inmediately.

SENATOR G ESSEL said in Roe v. Wade, 410 U S. 113 (1973) the
Suprene Court mmintained that the state has an interest in
protecting the life of a fetus after viability. That is the
poi nt at which the fetus is capable of living outside the wonb.

She said the protection of fetal Ilife after wviability has
bi ol ogi cal justifications and nmay proscribe abortion during the
period of viability, except when necessary to preserve the life
and health of the nother.

SENATOR G ESSEL referenced Planned Parenthood of Central
M ssouri v. Danforth, 428 U S. 52, 63(1976), 410 U S., at 160,
163. That court upheld the definition of viability in Roe. It
signifies the point at which the fetus is "potentially able to
live outside the nother's wonb, albeit with artificial aid,"” and
presumably capable of "neaningful |ife outside the nother's
wonb, " .

She al so referenced Wiitner v. State of South Carolina, 328 S.C
1, 7-8 (S.C 1997) that addressed the issue of when a fetus is
entitled to protection. That court held that a viable fetus was
a “person” for the purposes of the Children’s Code in South
Car ol i na.

1: 39: 38 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL summari zed sone of the sentinel events in the
devel opment of a fetus. Wek 5: vital organs form week 8:
eyelids form week 6: brain waves detected; week 9; sucking
t hunb and yawni ng.

She continued to describe fetal devel opnent:
Fetal devel opnent 14 weeks after conception.
Fi nger Pads -2nd and 3rd nonths of pregnancy. 3rd and

4th nmonths — the buckling and folding of this skin
| ayer is partially responsible for the unique stresses

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 7, 2018



in fingertip pads. Ridges, the faint 1lines on
fingertips that are the foundation of finger prints
start devel oping around this tine.

SENATOR G ESSEL advised that at this stage of devel opnment,
removing the fetus from the uterus requires dilation and
evacuation. She said the new term for this procedure is
di smenber nent .

Fetal devel opnent 23 weeks after conception

By six nonths of age fingerprints and footprints are
fully developed. Three main patterns have devel oped
from the ridges (arches, | oops, whor | s). These
patterns on the fingertips, palns and soles are used
to grasp things.

SENATOR G ESSEL said it’s been docunmented that by 20 weeks a
fetus feels pain. At 24 weeks there is response to sound. She
noted that in Al aska abortion is allowed at this stage.

Fetal devel opnent 27 weeks after conception:

Baby's eyelids can partially open and eyel ashes have
formed. The central nervous system can direct rhythmc
br eat hi ng nmovenents and control body tenperature.

Fetal devel opnent 31 weeks after conception:

Baby's eyes can open wi de. Red blood cells are form ng
in your baby's bone nmarrow Baby's toenails are
vi si bl e.

SENATOR G ESSEL said a baby woul d be considered term approaching
37 weeks. She noted that in Alaska an abortion could be
performed at this stage.

SENATOR G ESSEL said the concept of SB 124 is that babies would
have the best opportunity to survive at the age of viability.
She made the follow ng points:

*In the second trinester, 96 percent of abortion procedures
are dilatation and evacuation. This 1is also «called
di snenber nment .

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 7, 2018



« The Centers for Disease Control reports, in 2014 that 9
percent of all abortions are perforned on these very
devel oped babi es.

*Iln the U S. about 100,000 babies each year are aborted
usi ng the D&E procedure.

SENATOR G ESSEL discussed the followng points regarding the
di snmenber ment procedure.

e It is never nmedically necessary to preserve the life of the
nmot her in acute nedi cal energencies.

« Dilation of the cervix takes at | east 36 hours

e It is often guided by ultrasound, forceps grip each
extremty and tears it off.

e The head nust be crushed to renove it.

1:45: 45 PM
SENATOR G ESSEL discussed survival rate estimates at different
gestational ages. At 23 weeks or less, the potential surviva
rate is about 35 percent. The estimates rise as gestational age
i ncreases.

She displayed data to show that other states and countries limt
the age after which an abortion may be perforned. Miltiple
states identify 20 weeks as the |limt and 20 states ban an
abortion once there is viability. She said the bill takes that
into account and requires the doctor to deliver a viable baby
wi th the best chance of survival

SENATOR G ESSEL said sone people oppose the bill because they
don’t believe it would make a neani ngful difference. She's heard
the argunment that it would only save 2-3 lives in Al aska. She
mai nt ai ned that vastly underestinmates the inpact and pointed out
that every life matters.

She displayed pictures of Alaskan children who have Downs
Syndrome and noted that in Iceland pregnant wonen are tested for
this genetic disorder. Parents of children with this genetic
di sorder are told they will be responsible for the nedical and
speci al education costs for their child. She said the test is
only 85 percent accurate and she suspects many children w thout
Downs Syndrome are aborted.

1: 50: 01 PM
SENATOR G ESSEL noted that Gskar Schindler received a ring at a
reunion wth Jewish people whose lives he saved. It was

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 7, 2018



inscribed with a quote from the Talmud that said, “.whoever
saves a life, it is considered as if he saved an entire world.”
She said that's what this bill is about.

She cited a recent poll in which 76 percent said that abortion
should be limted after the end of the first trinester. To the
guestion of whether abortion should be prohibited for genetic
i ssues, 64 percent agreed. She maintained that the bill is in
keeping wth the sentinents of Anmericans. Eight states have
identified 20 weeks as the cutoff for abortion and chall enges
have been raised in six of those states. She said SB 124 is
nodel ed after the federal bill that failed to pass the Senate
last nmonth. The only difference is that this bill does not
identify the age of viability and it does not provide a penalty.
She advi sed that she would not oppose adding those things to the
bill.

1:52: 32 PM

SENATOR KELLY asked her to clarify that nothing in the bill
encourages abortions for genetic disorders such as Downs
Syndr one.

SENATOR A ESSEL said she called out Iceland to denonstrate how
far an abortion mandate can go. She added, “These are productive
i ndi vi dual s and absol utely should be given the opportunity to be
born alive.”

1:53:42 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said his research shows that the earliest a
premat ure baby can survive is 21 weeks and 4 or 5 days. He asked
i f she agrees.

SENATOR G ESSEL replied that is approximtely correct at present
but technology is always inproving, which is why the bill
doesn’t identify an age of viability.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI directed attention to the DHSS 2016 | nduced
Term nation of Pregnancy Statistics publication that her office
provided. On page 6 it says that 99.5 percent of induced
termnations in Alaska were performed at 13 weeks or |ess
gestational age. He asked if she had any reason to dispute that.

SENATOR @ ESSEL sai d no.
CHAIR COGHI LL said this is an issue that is near and dear to his

heart and he appreciates the sponsor bringing it forward.
Abortion is a question that is discussed as a noral issue, a

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 7, 2018



legal issue, and a political issue but it’'s really a child
i ssue. Roe v. Wade made it a legal issue and people like hinself
are trying to value a life under the rule of law in the best way
possi bl e. People who are very, very prolife don't believe this
bill goes far enough. It preserves the woman’s right and stil
gives the child a chance to be treated well.

He asked Ms. Nore to go through the sectional analysis.

1:57: 25 PM

KARI NORE, Staff, Senat or Cathy G essel, Al aska State
Legi slature Juneau, Alaska provided the following sectional
anal ysis for SB 124, version U

Section 1: Anrends AS 18.16.010 by adding new
subsections to provide for a physician to use the
met hod of termnating the pregnancy that best provides
for the unborn child to survive outside the nother’s
wonb. It requires health practitioners present at the
procedure to exercise the sanme degree of professional
practice and diligence to preserve the |ife of the
viable child born as would be provided to a child born
through the course of nat ur al birth. Provi des
definitions for “alive,” “clinical j udgnent ,”
“fertilization,” and “fetal age.”

Section 2: Amends AS 18.16 by adding a new section
that would allow a parent of a child born alive during
the process of an abortion to surrender the child to a
physician or enployee of the hospital. The person to
whom the child had been surrendered wll notify the
Department of Health and Social Services as required
under AS 47.10.013(d).

Section 3: Amends AS 47.10.011 and adds a provision in
the Child in Need of Aid (CINA) statue to include a
child born alive during the term nation of a pregnancy
whose parent is unwilling or unable to care for the
i nfant.

Section 4. Adds an applicability provision that states
that AS 18.16.010(k)-(m, added by Sec. 1, AS
18.16.012, added by Sec. 2, and AS 47.10.011, as
anended by Sec. 3 apply to abortions performed or
induced on or after the effective dates of those
sections.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 7, 2018



Section 5: Provides for an immediate effective date
for this Act

1:59: 25 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI referenced the |anguage in Section 1 and
asked whi ch net hods of abortion allow for a child to survive.

SENATOR G ESSEL said that would be an induced delivery.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if a hysterotony (c section) is a
safer nmethod of abortion.

SENATOR G ESSEL said yes, and if it’s a question of saving the
nother’s life, a ¢ section would be done.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if a c section is major surgery.

SENATOR G ESSEL replied sonme regard it as that but it’'s becone
rather m nimal surgery.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said the information he’'s seen indicates a
woman who has had a c¢ section stays in the hospital 2-3 days and
is recommended to stay off work for six weeks. He asked if she
agr eed.

SENATOR G ESSEL said it depends on the wonan and her fundanent al
heal t h.

CHAIR COGHILL said his daughter had twins with a ¢ section and
she had two days of rest with the twins and then she went back
to work.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI referenced a docunent from the Mayo Cinic
that said, "After a c¢ section you face a higher risk of
potentially serious conplications in a subsequent pregnancy,
including problenms with the placenta.” He asked if she would
agree with that statenent.

SENATOR G ESSEL replied a phenonenal nunber of ¢ sections are
done in this country. It’s becone a very conmobn way to deliver
babies and it’s an overstatenent to say it jeopardizes future
pregnancies or the life of the nother.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI responded that it's a direct quote fromthe
Mayo Clinic. Noting that 21 weeks and 4 days was the earliest a
premature baby has survived, he asked how many abortions in
Alaska in the last five years were done after 21 weeks.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 7, 2018



SENATOR G ESSEL replied those nunbers are on page 11 of the DHSS
2016 |Induced Term nation of Pregnancy Statistics publication.
She directed attention to the category of “Not Stated” which
could nean those not wanting to admt the age of the child at
the tinme of the abortion.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI asked if she agrees that in 2016 there were
zero abortions at 21-24 weeks.

SENATOR G ESSEL agreed and pointed out that four were in the
“Not Stated” category and two are in the 17 to 20-week bracket.
She said technology is always inproving and she believes that
every life is worth saving.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that the |owest recorded age for a
surviving fetus in the world is 21 weeks. He asked if a
physician would be required to perform a different type of
abortion procedure on fetuses under 21 weeks.

CHAIR COGH LL requested he share the docunent with world
statistics with the commttee. He asked him to restate the
guesti on.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said a baby born May 20, 1987 at 21 weeks
and five days was the earliest premature baby in the world. A
nore recent docunent said a baby was born at 21 weeks and four
days. If the bill passes, he asked if physicians would have to
perform i nduced | abor or a hysterotony if the gestational age is
younger than 21 weeks and four days.

SENATOR G ESSEL replied it is left to the professional judgenent
of the physician. She added that because gestational age is
often incorrect, it’s not advisable to set a specific date in
t hese situations.

CHAIR COGHI LL asked if wultrasound or other technology helps to
determ ne gestational age.

SENATOR G ESSEL confirned that ultrasounds are very helpful in
determ ning gestational age and viability.

SENATOR W ELECHOAMSKI noted that since 1999, 0.5 percent of
abortions are done at 13 weeks or earlier. He asked if it’s
possible to induce labor or perform a hysterotony that would
save the life of a child at 13 weeks gestational age.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 7, 2018



SENATOR G ESSEL said the bill doesn't |imt the age because
t echnol ogy advances may make that possible at sone point.

SENATOR COGHI LL comented on technol ogi c advances in other areas
and said, “W’'re continually trying to figure out ways how we
guard that life.”

SENATOR W ELECHONSKI  asked if it’s accurate that if the
technology were to inprove, any wonman who wanted an abortion
woul d need to have a c section.

SENATOR G ESSEL replied the bill doesn't nmke that dramatic
st at enent .

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if she would agree that's the effect
of the bill.

SENATOR G ESSEL clarified that the Dbill says, “I'n  the
prof essi onal judgnent of the physician, if viability is likely
then the best opportunity for survival nust be given to the
baby.”

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there are crimnal penalties if a
physi ci an viol ates the provision.

SENATOR G ESSEL said she purposely did not include that but
woul d wel come an anendnent. The physician is required to use
their ethical and professional judgnent.

2:11: 42 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOANSKI directed attention to page 2 lines 5-7,
that defines “alive.” He asked if “spontaneous respiratory or

cardiac function or pulsation of the unbilical cord nmeans after
removal fromthe wonb.

SENATOR G ESSEL sai d yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI said he assunes pul sation of the unbilical
cord happens very early on.

SENATOR G ESSEL said pulsation of the unmbilical cord indicates
the circulatory systemis functioning.

CHAIR COGHI LL said if he were to |look at accountability he' d

start with the reporting. He opined that based on the 2016
report, the DHSS fiscal note will be easy to chall enge.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 7, 2018



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI directed attention to the definitions of
i nduced term nation procedures in Appendix A on page 18 and 19
of the DHSS 2016 report. Noting that she said that induced | abor
and a hysterotony provided the best opportunity for the unborn
child to survive, he asked which of the procedures would be
i nduced | abor.

SENATOR G ESSEL said none of the listed procedures would result
in alive birth. “There’s no way that induced delivery, induced
| abor would be listed here. It's not a way to kill the baby.”

2:16:58 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI read the | anguage on page 1, lines 7-9. He
said if induced labor isn't a mnmethod of termnating the
pregnancy, that |eaves a hysterotomy or c¢ section. Should the
bill pass, every woman in Al aska who wants an abortion would be
required to get a c section if the physician determnes that is
the best way to save the child. He asked if she agreed with his
readi ng.

SENATOR G ESSEL said she was sonewhat tenpted to suggest he was
practicing nmedicine without a license. She said the normal way a
pregnancy is termnated is with the delivery of the baby. The
nmet hods |isted on page 18 of the report are induced term nation
procedures that do not result in a live birth.

SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI said he didn’'t have any nedical expertise
but the language in Section 1 seens to |leave a woman who wants
to termnate a pregnancy with the only option of having a c
secti on.

SENATOR KELLY read the definition of “lInduced Term nation of
Pregnancy” on page 18 of the report and said he didn't think it
foll owed that the woman woul d have to have a ¢ section

CHAIR COGHI LL added that term nation of pregnancy that results
in alive birth wiuld be added to the statutes if the bill were
to pass.

2:20: 03 PM

SENATOR G ESSEL said the subject of ¢ section came up because it
is a nethod of termnating a pregnancy that would be enployed if
it were an energency procedure to save the nother’'s life. A D&E
is not an energency procedure because it takes at |east 36 hours
to dilate the cervix.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 7, 2018



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for confirmation that the bil
doesn’t seek to ban D&Es.

SENATOR G ESSEL replied it is a procedure called di smenbernent.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if she was seeking to ban the
pr ocedure.

SENATOR G ESSEL responded that the procedure involves dilating
the cervix and entering it wth a tool that grasps and
di snmenbers pi eces of babies.

CHAIR COGHI LL said that for some people, the controversy is
there shoul d never be any disnenbernent. Not at at any stage. He
agrees with that viewpoint. The bill namintains the nother’s
right to termnate the pregnancy and directs the physician to
use their clinical judgnent and use the procedure that provides
the best opportunity for the wunborn child to survive. The
question of viability rests with the physician.

SENATOR G ESSEL confirmed that viability is the basis of the
bill.

CHAIR COGHI LL thanked the sponsor for the introduction. His
intention is to take public testinony Monday, consi der
anendnents on Wdnesday, and nove the bill either W.dnesday or
Fri day.

2:23:10 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL held SB 124 in conmittee.

2:23:14 PM
At ease

SB 109- CRIM HI ST CHECK: ST EMPLOYEES/ CONTRACTORS

2: 30: 24 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL reconvened the neeting and announced the
consi deration of SB 109.

2:31:26 PM

GENEVI EVE WQJTUSI K, Legislative Liaison, Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Alaska, said SB 109 relates to background checks of
state enpl oyees. The Septenber 30, 2016 Internal Revenue Service
(I1RS) publication 1075 has new qguidelines that requires
i ndividuals who have access to federal data to wundergo a

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 7, 2018



background check. The state is not in conpliance with the
fingerprinting requirenment in that publication.

She provided the follow ng sectional analysis for SB 109:

Section 1 Anmends AS 12.62.400 by adding a new
subsection. This will require an agency to submt the
fingerprints of current or prospective enployees or
contractors whose job duties require access to federal
tax information (defined in AS 39.55.015(e)(3) and
36.30.960(d)(3)) to the Departnent of Public Safety
for subm ssion to the Federal Bureau of I|nvestigation
to obtain a crimnal history record. Defines “agency”,
“enpl oyee” and “contractor”

Section 2 Amends AS 36.30 by adding a new section.
This section establishes state personnel procedures
for obtaining and submitting fingerprints for current
or prospective contractors if a contract with the
state requires access to federal tax information.
Defines *“agency”, “contractor” and “federal t ax
i nformation”.

Section 3 Arends AS 39 by adding a new chapter. This
new chapter addresses state personnel pr ocedur es
related to federal tax information.

Adds AS 39.55.010

This section explains the purpose of the chapter-- to
establish pr ocedur es to saf eguard f eder al t ax
information which wll apply to a current or

prospective state enployee whose job duties require
access to federal tax information.

Adds AS 39. 55. 015

This section requires current and prospective state
enpl oyees whose job duties require access to federa
tax information to provide information to an agency
for a state and national crimnal history record
check. Defines “agency”, “enployee”, “federal tax
information”, “return”, and “return information”

Section 4 Provides the effective date of July 1, 2017.

M5. WOJTUSIK noted that the effective date will need to be
anended to 2018.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 7, 2018



2: 34: 24 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL asked what happened at the federal |evel that
elicited this requirenent.

ME. WOJTUSIK said it cane about in a routine revi ew.

SENATOR BISHOP asked if an enployee who did not want to be
fingerprinted would have the option of being reassigned to a
di fferent division or departnent.

M5. WOJTUSIK said that hasn't come up. Al the enployees in the
Tax Division and the Child Support Services Division of the
Department of Revenue (DOR) have already had background checks.
They receive federal data so they al so need to be fingerprinted.

SENATOR BISHOP said he wunderstands that but wonders if they
could transfer to a division that doesn’t have that requirenent.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if there is any other heightened
scrutiny that enployees could go through if they objected to
giving their fingerprint information.

M5. WDJTUSIK said the FBI said that fingerprints are needed as
part of a full background check. They did not offer any
alternative.

CHAI R COGHI LL said he'd asked the individuals who were online.

2:37:31 PM

CAROL BEECHER, Director, Child Support Services Division,
Departnent of Revenue (DOR), said her understanding from readi ng
Publication 1075 is that there is no other option.

CHAIR COGH LL asked if any enployees objected that the
requi renent is too onerous.

MS. BEECHER sai d there has been no pushback.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI observed that the definition of “agency”
covers the entire executive and then sonme. He asked if she has
an estimate of the nunber of enployees who would be required to
gi ve fingerprints.

M5. WODJTUSI K said she didn’'t know.

CHAI R COGHI LL asked Ms. Wjtusik to do sone research and follow
up with the information.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 15- March 7, 2018



M5. WOITUSIK said DHSS is affected and 300 enpl oyees within the
Departnent of Revenue.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he’'d like nore conplete nunbers. He
asked what assurance Al askans can have that their data wll be
saf el y mai nt ai ned.

2:41: 00 PM

M5. BEECHER clarified that DOR doesn't receive the fingerprint
i nformati on. When DOR has a background check done, the report is
returned to the agency’s Cimnal Investigation Unit. She
believes that information is destroyed if it doesn’'t have a
nexus to the job. She offered to follow up and find out if her
understanding is correct.

CHAI R COCGHI LL asked Senator Wel echowski to clarify his question
for M. Gaffney.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked what kind of safety protections there
are and what the plans are for the fingerprints after they are
col | ected.

2:42:56 PM

ERI C GAFFNEY, Records and Licensing Supervisor, Crimnal Records
I dentification Bureau, Departnent of Public Safety, Anchorage,
Al aska, explained that the fingerprints would be placed in the
archive that is mintained by the state for other civil and
crimnal fingerprint submssions. Alaska is a nenber of the
Western Identification Network with other Wstern states and
crimnal justice agencies in those states can access that
archive. The prints would al so be conveyed to the FBI to be used
for conparison and then destroyed.

SENATOR W ELECHOMNSKI asked how nuch it costs to obtain the
fingerprints and who woul d be responsible for paying.

MS. WDJTUSIK said DPS charges $47 to take the fingerprint and
the state wll pay.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there is a fiscal note.

M5. WDJTUSIK said it’s forthcomng; it's being updated from
2017.

CHAI R COGHI LL updated M. Spanos on the discussion and asked if
t he House had questions about the security of the information.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -16- March 7, 2018



2:46: 44 PM

BRANDON SPANCS, Deputy Director, Tax Division, Departnent of
Revenue (DOR), Juneau, Al aska, confirned that the other body did
have concerns about the security of the information. He
explained that DOR has policies in place for security and they
take this seriously, but that isn't part of the bill.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if other states have conplied wth
this requirement and what the consequences are if the bill
doesn’t pass.

MR. SPANCS said the IRS has been talking about this a long tine
and it has been discussed with the states. Wen the publication
was finalized, the new requirenents were background checks and
fingerprinting. To date, 26 states have passed legislation to
allow fingerprinting and background checks, 14 states -
i ncluding Alaska - have |egislation under consideration, and 8
states have no legislation pending. Sone of the latter states
may be able to conply without a bill.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI asked if there is a deadline for conplying.

MR. SPANCS said if the bill doesn't pass, the IRS wll Ilikely
have a finding on the My 2018 audit that notes that the
| egislation hasn’'t passed. He suspects that the IRS would
eventually stop sharing federal tax information wth the
division. For the Tax Division that neans the |oss of about $2
mllion a year from federal fee back audits. The division would
also lose the ability to get federal tax information on certain
taxpayers |ike tobacco, mning, and alcohol to use in their
audits. Child support services would lose the ability to collect
the federal refunds of taxpayers who owe child support. They
woul d also potentially lose the funding they receive from the
federal government, which is 66 percent of their budget.

He said he wasn’'t aware of a deadline to pass the |egislation.

2:51: 08 PM
SENATOR COSTELLO said she would like to look at the form an
individual would fill out. She asked if the form asks for a

Social Security Nunmber and what the state does wth those
numnbers.

MR SPANCS said the Tax Division has slimed the formto one and

a half pages. It requires nane, age, aliases, forner nanes,
Social Security Nunber, places of residence for the last 10

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -17- March 7, 2018



years, conviction dates and the classification of the crime, the
puni shment, and a signature authorizing the departnent to run
the background check. The questionnaires go to the Crimnal
| nvestigation Unit to run the background check and the results
cone back they give the division a clean sheet that says the
person passed the background check or that there were concerns
due to crinmes of dishonesty. The division would review those to
determ ne whether they would retain or potentially hire or not
hire the prospective enployee. The division keeps a record that
t he background check was run but the results are retained by the
Crimnal Investigation Unit.

SENATOR COSTELLO asked what happens to the Social Security
Nunber that’s on the form

MR. SPANCS said DOR's Crimnal Investigation Unit would retain
it in a locked file behind a | ocked and secure door.

SENATOR COSTELLO rel ated her personal experience of having her
identity stolen. She enphasized that public servants need to be
on the | ookout to protect Al askans when they' re asked to provide
this type of information.

2:55:43 PM

MR. SPANCS said the departnent is very concerned about privacy
and confidentiality. Forms wth Social Security Nunmbers are
handl ed by very few people in the departnent. There is a chain
of custody and the forns are al ways secured under |ock and key.

2:57:00 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if he is aware of any state enpl oyees
m susi ng federal tax information.

MR. SPANCS said the Child Support Services Division termnated
several enployees who were accessing information they had no
busi ness reason to access. That information potentially had
federal tax information. He was aware of one breach of
information within the Tax Division that resulted in discipline
and term nation. OQher breaches were mstakes; information was
sent to the wong email that involved state tax information, not
federal. The division has a procedure to address that.

2:58:12 PM
CHAIR COGHI LL asked if the conpanion bill in the House is
novi ng.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 18- March 7, 2018



VR. SPANCS said the intention is to take anendnents and
potentially nmove the bill on Friday.

CHAIR COCGHI LL held SB 109 in comm ttee.
2:59: 04 PM
There being no further business to cone before the committee,

Chair Coghill adjourned the Senate Judiciary Standing Conmttee
nmeeting at 2:59 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -19- March 7, 2018



